
 

Download this agenda via the free modern.gov app on your iPad, Android Device 
or Blackberry Playbook.  For information relating to this meeting or to request a 

copy in another format or language please contact: 
Governance Support, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  

 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk - www.torbay.gov.uk  

(1) 

 
 

Wednesday, 3 April 2024 
 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
SUB-BOARD 

 

A meeting of Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board 
will be held on 

 
Thursday, 11 April 2024 

 
commencing at 2.00 pm 

 
The meeting will be held in the Banking Hall, Castle Circus entrance on the left 

corner of the Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR 
 
 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Joyce (Chairman) 

 

Councillor Johns (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Tolchard 

 

Councillor Twelves 

Councillor Fellows 

 

 

 

A Healthy, Happy and Prosperous Torbay 

https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/


(2) 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
SUB-BOARD 

AGENDA 
 
1.   Apologies 

 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 4 - 17) 
 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 

Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board 
held on 14 March 2024. 
 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 a) To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect 

of items on this agenda 
 

For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form 
should be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the 
meeting. 

 
b) To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in 

respect of items on this agenda 
 

For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on 
any potential interests they may have, they should contact 
Governance Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 

 
4.   Urgent Items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
5.   NHS Delivery - Building a Brighter Future Programme Update (Pages 18 - 27) 
 To receive a verbal update on delivery of the capital programme 

and re-design of the hospital. 
 
(Note: presented by the Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Strategy 
and Transformation Officer, Senior Responsible Officer, New 
Hospital Programme, Torbay and South Devon NHS Trust). 
 
 
 
 
 
 



(3) 

6.   Local Government Association Contract Management Review (Pages 28 - 31) 
 To receive a verbal presentation on the work undertaken which 

allowed the revised work on Adult Social Care procurement and 
contracting to progress. 
 
(Note: presented by the Associate Director of Operations, Torbay 
and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust). 
 

7.   Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board 
Work Programme 2024 - 2025 

(Pages 32 - 35) 

 To approve the work programme for the Board for the 2024/2025 
Municipal Year. 
 

8.   Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board 
Action Tracker 

(Pages 36 - 40) 

 To receive an update on the implementation of the actions of the 
Sub-Board and consider any further actions required (as set out in 
the submitted action tracker). 
 



  
 

 

Minutes of the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-
Board 

 
14 March 2024 

 
-: Present :- 

 
Councillor Joyce (Chairman) 

 

Councillors Johns (Vice-Chair), Tolchard, Twelves and Fellows 
 

(Also in attendance: Councillors Long and Tranter) 

 

 
29. Apologies  

 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 

30. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Board held on 18 January 2024 were 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

31. Spotlight Review on Dementia Support in Torbay  
 
The Chairman introduced the Spotlight Review on Dementia Support in Torbay.  The 
scope and Agenda were focussed with a view to identifying practical and achievable 
recommendations. 

 
The key aims and objectives of the Review were to achieve an overview of the 
support and services available to people living with dementia and people caring for 
those living with dementia in Torbay, together with the challenges currently faced and 
how support and services could be improved. 

 
The Chairman thanked guest speakers and officers for attending. 
 
Adult Social Care Commissioning Strategy and Public Health and 
Services and support provided by the NHS and Devon Partnership Trust 
 
Members of the Sub-Board received a presentation outlining an integrated 
perspective across Torbay Council, including Public Health, and the NHS in respect of 
commissioning and delivering dementia services in Torbay. 
 
The Consultant in Public Health, Torbay Council explained that there were 1,612 
people aged over 65 on Torbay General Practitioner (GP) registers with diagnosed 
dementia in 2022/23.  However, the estimate was that around 2,714 people aged over 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

65 in Torbay were actually living with dementia in 2023.  The main potential risk 
factors for developing dementia were age, lifestyle factors, mental and social activity 
and sex (more women were living with dementia than men). 
 
In terms of regional and national comparisons, as at August 2023, the percentage of 
GP patients with a dementia diagnosis, aged over 65 was 4.08% in Torbay and 4.12% 
for England with 3.92% for the South West.  The mortality rate for Torbay was similar 
to that for England but there was a real differential in terms of sex and deprivation 
which demonstrated that the figure was higher in respect of females and that 
deprivation factors in Torbay were higher than average.  Early intervention was key 
and the Lancet Commission research had concluded that twelve areas of focus, 
including maintaining frequent exercise, stopping smoking and treating hearing 
impairment, for example, not only contributed to healthy lifestyles but helped to reduce 
neuropathological damage and to increase and maintain cognitive reserve, thereby 
preventing up to 40% of dementias. 
 
Moving forwards into the future, the predicted population change from 2021 to 2041 
for Torbay was for a substantial continued increase in the numbers of older people 
and a reduction in those of younger and working age.  Both Devon and Torbay were 
projected to have approximately one third of the population aged over 65 by 2043.  
The Chief Officer’s Annual Report 2023 focussed on Health in an Ageing Society and 
concluded that as a whole nationally, the population was ageing significantly going 
forward with rural and coastal areas ageing at a faster rate.  Inequality factors also 
influenced ageing rate and therefore there was a focus on prevention, with thought as 
to quality of life as well as how long people live.  In terms of prevention work in 
Torbay, there was a Healthy Ageing Programme, “Live Longer Better Torbay” which 
was working across communities to transform awareness of the benefits of staying 
active. 
 
The Director of the Mental Health Provider Collaborative provided an Integrated Care 
System perspective and informed Members that work was underway across the 
system to move towards a more integrated way of working and in terms of dementia 
care there was a genuine opportunity to achieve that.  In January 2024 a Dementia 
Summit was held which was attended by 60 providers.  Pre-summit engagement 
asked people to prioritise areas for those living with dementia.  The following 
responses were given: 
 

 timely diagnosis; 

 timely support and practical advice, based on need not technical eligibility; 

 respite for Carers; 

 “no wrong door” and proper connection between community organisations, 
primary care, secondary care and mental health expertise; 

 available crisis support; 

 specialist support and training to care homes; 

 better coordination within and between health and social care; 

 understanding of dementia as a long term condition, with a clear pathway; and 

 having the right end of life care remains really important. 
 
 

Page 5



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

Current difficulties identified were extremely constrained financial circumstances, with 
financial planning still in process for 2024/25 and the recent withdrawal of the previous 
contract for Alzheimer’s Society post-diagnostic support – not all Local Authorities had 
been able to prioritise this.   
 
The Summit recognised that there was not a Dementia Strategy for Torbay and there 
was a real need for one.  The Summit highlighted lots of examples of good care, 
committed professionals and dedicated community responses but this was 
fragmented, with no overall direction or certainty of resource.  Consideration was 
given to the overall “Dementia Well” pathway: 
 

 preventing well; 

 diagnosing well; 

 supporting well; 

 living well; and 

 dying well. 
 
It was explained that the key focus of the Summit was to prioritise diagnosis, post 
diagnostic support and co-ordination to support people living well with dementia.  Key 
work streams were implied in the discussion which would be tested with participants 
and the strategy developed.  Likely work streams included post diagnostic support, 
support to Carers, support to care homes, complex dementia provision and market 
provision and development of the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprises 
Sector (VCSE). 
 
In summary, it was vital to have a Dementia Strategy in place which brought together 
the key themes ranging from prevention to dying well. 
 
The Strategic Partnership Manager, Adult Social Care Commissioning, Torbay 
Council provided Members with a Local Authority Commissioning perspective and 
explained that prevalence data estimates for Torbay showed that over the next 10 
years the number of people living with dementia would increase by over 30% to 3,300 
people.  27% of Torbay’s population were aged 65 or over, compared to just 18% of 
the population across England and by 2040 was expected to rise to one in three 
(34%) of Torbay’s population.  Therefore, demographic changes suggested levels of 
demand were likely to increase and so the challenge would be to do more and better 
with the budget available. 
 
It was acknowledged that there was some brilliant work being carried out by Carers, 
the voluntary sector, nursing providers and experts in community teams.  However, 
there were challenges in that the market in Torbay, particularly the residential and 
domiciliary care provider market, was currently not equipped to deal with the increase 
in complexity of need.  Torbay’s health and social care market was wholly 
externalised and almost all of the provision accessed consisted of independent 
businesses.  If there was to be change within the market, it would have to be carried 
out in a commercial way, for example, changing contracts and expectations from care 
providers.  This was not a change that could be forced and NHS and Local Authority 
commissioners had not yet defined what modern services should look like nor the 
cost.  Another challenge related to the fact that there was no purpose built dementia 
provision and a heavy reliance on adapted 19th Century residential buildings not 

Page 6



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

designed for the needs of people with complex and challenging dementia.  It was 
acknowledged that new services would be extremely expensive and slow to reach the 
market with little innovation in design.  There was also a lack of end-to-end 
rehabilitative or reablement model for dementia in place yet and this limited 
meaningful daytime activity, replacement care or support for the voluntary sector, 
user-led care and support options.  It was accepted that the model in terms of 
engaging with the voluntary sector outside commissioned care was not as good as it 
could be and although commissioners bought domiciliary care very well, there was a 
lack of sophistication at present, in the way in which other parts of the market could be 
bought.  There were extremely limited alternatives to residential care and a delay in 
delivering new extra care housing.  However, a lot of good design work had been 
carried out for Torre Marine in conjunction with Stirling University’s Dementia Services 
Development Centre and it was felt that good delivery of the project meant that a 
really good housing model case of care could be delivered with better outcomes and a 
lower cost.  The main concerns were that, at present, there was no Dementia Strategy 
in place to unite all stakeholders into a joined-up Torbay framework based on the 
national “Dementia Well” pathway.  Adult Social Care Commissioning would lead the 
work in that respect and the ideal was to have a co-produced strategy in place, which 
would be a Torbay version of the national strategy with input from everyone who had 
a stake in dementia services.  The aspiration was to do more with available resources 
to keep people independent for as long as possible and then at the point of escalation, 
to manage the pathway smoothly at the right time for those individuals.  It was 
important to help people “age in place” and remain part of their community within their 
natural circles of support.  In order to achieve this, it was vital to have more domiciliary 
and personal assistant services in the community, who also specialised in complex 
support that people could buy directly, including with a personal budget or direct 
payment.  There needed to be a stronger focus on resilience, re-ablement and access 
to aids and assistive technology together with better partnerships with both 
commissioned and non-commissioned voluntary sector and community providers of 
all sizes enabling people and carers to access the right advice and signposting them 
to the help and support they were eligible for.  There needed to be greater availability 
for supported housing, including extra-care housing and sheltered schemes with 
modern residential and nursing provision that met current best practice for dementia-
friendly design and improved life outcomes, together with co-production of services 
and care and support pathways with people living with dementia and family carers.  
Innovators in the market were paramount as existing provision was not suitable going 
forward into the future. 
 
It was highlighted to Members that one of the most important aspects to think about 
was that whatever was done, it was essential to co-produce the Dementia Strategy 
with people who had lived experience of dementia.  Conversations with those people 
would enable that experience to be built into the wider response. 
 
The Associate Director of Operations, Adult Social Care, Torbay and South Devon 
NHS Trust provided the NHS providers’ perspective and informed the Board that there 
was absolute alignment with partners in working together to develop the Dementia 
Strategy whilst looking carefully at the market and transformation.  It was accepted 
that a more cohesive approach was required together with design for better provision.  
Homes were the main provider of dementia care in Torbay, but there was not a care 
home provider that specialised in dementia care.  Many of the care homes supported 

Page 7



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

individuals with low to mid dementia needs and the NHS was aware of the increasing 
need for placements that could accommodate individuals with challenging behaviours 
and complex needs.  There was a care home education service which worked 
alongside care homes and provided excellent support in developing knowledge with 
training at various levels which was also offered out to South Devon College as part of 
the work around prevention.  Knowledge sharing and gauging the level of provision for 
each care home ensured that appropriate placements were being made.  The Devon 
standard definition was yet to be developed for what was meant regarding ‘complex’ 
dementia, however to define this was a goal of an NHS Devon Enhanced Health in 
Care Homes.  There had been significant improvements in markets although 
specifications had not been developed yet for the future.  However, work was 
underway with individual providers to create a tiered system of one to one specialist 
dementia support where care was regularly reviewed as the care home understood 
client’s needs and could keep them safe.  This presented an excellent opportunity 
around provision to understand any innovations providers may have in mind so there 
was confident collaboration moving into the future which would set the tone as to how 
to manage the market moving forward.  There was a need for contract management 
and quality assurance to be heightened due to providers’ clients presenting with more 
complex behaviours.  At present the market was completely externalised.  Therefore, 
working in collaboration was key and actively seeking ideas to look at pathways more 
broadly from the acute setting and primary care all the way through would provide 
more of a circular picture and provide an understanding of areas that when 
transformed, would be really cognisant about how people move through the journey in 
the systems.  From a transformation perspective there was a lot of work to do but also 
good building blocks were already in place and the existing relationships with Torbay 
Council and the Devon Partnership Trust would continue to allow that development 
and good transformation going forward.  From an operational perspective, the NHS 
was very much aligned with partners.  It was imperative to have a Dementia Strategy 
in place in order to help address the expected bulge in numbers of people living with 
dementia in the future. 
 
The Deputy Clinical Director for Older People’s Services and Consultant Psychiatrist 
for Torbay Community Mental Health Team for Older People provided an overview of 
Devon Partnership Trust Dementia Services. 
 
The Board was informed that the Devon Partnership Trust (DPT) older people’s 
services had seen a 45% increase in referrals for assessment and support over the 
past 5 years with an expected 35% increase in people over the age of 65 in Devon 
between 2023 and 2040 alongside a 51% increase in dementia prevalence.  The 
Devon dementia diagnostic rate remained a national outlier at 55%.  DPT Dementia 
Services consisted of Torbay Community Mental Health Team (CMHT), Torbay Care 
Home Education and Support Service (CHESS) and Devon Memory Service (Torbay 
memory clinic).   
 
It was explained that the Alzheimer's Society contract with ICB to provide post 
diagnostic support for dementia patients in Devon was terminated last year.  DPT 
repurposed £340,000, which it used previously to run a post diagnostic support pilot in 
North Devon, to provide a Devon wide post diagnostic service. 
 

Page 8



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

In terms of post diagnostic service development, a DPT offer would be in development 
from April 2024 and £340,000 would be repurposed to invest in building the 
foundations of an effective and sustainable post diagnostic service across the DPT 
footprint.  The purpose of this would be to provide dedicated support for patients post 
diagnosis regardless of where the diagnosis was made; to provide supervision and 
support to local partners (for example, local authorities, voluntary sector and primary 
care) and so that patients and carers would be able to self refer and access post 
diagnostic service advice, signposting and if required, assessment and intervention.  
Currently work was underway with dementia experts and research colleges to ensure 
that the service would be clinically effective and evidence based and recruitment for 
the service was being undertaken. This was coupled with ongoing work with 
Integrated Care Board (ICB) colleagues to support the development of a Dementia 
Strategy which needed to focus on prevention through to diagnosis and support.   
 
Transformation was needed but impacted by post-pandemic system recovery, 
financial challenges (in a national context), resource implications (workforce, skills and 
infrastructure) across each part of the sector, multiple priorities and wider 
transformative work, legal literacy (for example, the Health and Care Act 2022), 
organisational changes and wider market conditions to support capacity and 
innovation. 
 
In terms of the next steps towards a Dementia Strategy it would be necessary to 
address the impact of demographics, prevalence and societal changes.  Partnerships 
in Torbay were committed to ensuring joined up services and working with people with 
lived experience as well as Carers and the voluntary sector so that there was a 
shared understanding and co-production.  Partners collectively recognised that there 
were things that needed to be done differently, that were multifaceted and required a 
whole pathway approach.  People needed to be put at the centre with work to build a 
community that was resilient and based on wellbeing.  The whole pathway needed to 
be seen as a system and careful consideration given to stepping in only when needed 
and in a way that helped navigate people through their life with dementia. 
 
The Board raised a number of questions and were informed that: 
 

 medications for dementia are not disease modifying drugs but have a role in 
prolonging the quality of life for patients; 

 it was important to push the boundaries when developing new services and 
there were some good examples of work happening nationally and 
internationally around what a good built environment looked like in terms of 
urban and residential design.  There was a desire to work with Stirling 
University who had a dementia design unit and it would be of benefit to link 
architects with them so that the university could challenge proposed building 
designs to ensure they were as effective as possible, for example, containing 
spaces where people could wander with purpose and designing living 
accommodation taking into account needs as physical abilities deteriorated.  
Elements such as sound proofing and colourways were also important factors; 

 three of the four medications available were suited to newly diagnosed patients 
with the remaining medication more appropriate for those individuals in the 
more advanced stages of dementia.  There was evidence to suggest that giving 
medication for mild cognitive impairment actually worsened that condition.  

Page 9



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

There were side effects to the medication which were usually mild and it 
usually took a period of time for the body to adjust to the medication.  The more 
serious side effects of the medication could include convulsions.   
It was important to realise that each patient was individual and there may be 
other medical issues to consider in combination, for example, some patients 
may also have cardiovascular conditions; 

 prior to Covid-19, the community mental health team was not holding a waiting 
list and patients were usually assessed within 4 to 6 weeks.  Post Covid-19, 
this had extended to up to 16 to 18 weeks.  For memory clinics, waiting had 
increased from 12 weeks up to 18 weeks due to Covid-19 and other reasons; 

 it was important to acknowledge that people were assessed in the community 
as well; 

 for a diagnosis to be made, a GP would need to refer the patient to the central 
system rather than directly to the memory clinic; 

 in terms of dementia diagnosis generally, there was quite a lot of work in 
relation to screening at a primary care level.  The GP would usually use one of 
three questionnaires, involving the patient and carers and would also take a 
blood test.  It was difficult to diagnose dementia when there were a lot of other 
things going on medically with the patient and so GP’s tended to exercise a 
degree of caution in diagnosing dementia; 

 some GP patients did not want to be diagnosed with dementia as they felt there 
was a stigma around it and they may also not want to lose their driving licence.  
Therefore, it was really important as a society to support people coming 
forward for diagnosis, highlighting the benefits in terms of safety, as well as 
access to treatment and access to post diagnostic support; 

 prior to Covid-19 a series of visits to care homes were undertaken and it 
became apparent that they were very anxious about the increase in 
complexities and were struggling to deal with that.  Advice was given around 
acoustic management as noise could act as a trigger for a lot of behaviours 
that could be challenging.  Stable furniture which allowed two people to sit 
together helped enable human contact particularly with family visits and work 
was carried out around cutlery so that people could maintain dignity in feeding 
themselves, so colour, design and tilt of plates was considered as well as 
putting domestic scale kitchens in for use by residents so that it gave people a 
safe space to cook.  There was also a lot of work done around reminiscent 
pods, for example, rooms that were designed to look like a living room from a 
certain period of time and acoustic monitoring systems so that staff could 
monitor patients moving around at night without noise from alarms. 
 

The Board acknowledged that the challenge around dementia was global. 
 
Impact on the community - a voluntary sector perspective 
 
The Chief Executive, Healthwatch and the Chief Officer of Torbay Age UK provided 
an overview of the voluntary sector perspective and service user perspective. 
 
Members were informed that statistics provided by Torbay Age UK for the period 
March to December 2023 showed that the average age of someone seeking support 
from Torbay Age UK was 79.  There was a lack of local targeted support for 
befriending people and out of 113 referrals, 25% presented as lonely and isolated, 

Page 10



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

64% were female and 36% male.  The average number of referrals was 12 per month 
and the most popular route for referrals was via direct contact from families or through 
the Community Helpline.   
 
As of March 2024 Torbay Age UK stopped taking referrals for the dementia wellbeing 
service as funding had ended for the one full time Wellbeing Co-ordinator post.  There 
were limited opportunities for onwards referral with only one drop in café locally 
available.  Dementia diagnosis seemed to be taking a considerable time with people 
waiting months for an appointment. 
 
Carers, particularly those who living with a partner with dementia were at increasing 
risk of Carer breakdown because of the pressures they faced.  The voluntary sector 
had been working with those with dementia and their Carers to provide support where 
they were able.  
 
It was apparent that the Covid-19 pandemic had severely impacted people with 
dementia and their families, in particular a lack of face-to-face support and 
involvement in support groups. 
 
It was highlighted that more training around dementia was needed, not just for 
professionals and the voluntary sector, but for carers, such as those caring for a 
partner with dementia, so that they could learn what to expect and how to deal with 
challenging behaviours. 
 
It was explained that support for the voluntary sector was also required as people 
were presenting with more complexities.  The voluntary sector wished to work with 
partners to provide a better level of support.  Healthwatch Torbay were currently 
undertaking work around unpaid Carers and out of 224 Carers that participated, 
around a third were caring for someone with dementia.  Volunteers were often 
becoming upset by what was being shared with them and people felt overwhelmed 
and either did not know who to contact for support or did not receive call backs.  It 
was frustrating for people who did not know where to go or what to do.  It was 
compounded by the difficulty in making GP appointments and this all added to the 
layers of complexity that wrapped around services.  The main point was that Carers 
wanted to know there was someone they could call for help to avoid a crisis – many 
Carers did not know how to work with aggressive behaviour. 
 
Both Healthwatch Torbay and Torbay Age UK were fully supportive that a Dementia 
Strategy was needed now.  The Care Quality Commission (CQC) were currently 
engaging with a range of key stakeholders including care professionals, people with 
lived experience, voluntary and community sector organisations and local 
Healthwatch to help them develop a national Strategy for Dementia which would help 
address inequalities in the quality of treatment and care provided to people affected 
by dementia. 
 
It was suggested that the type of information people should be able to access and 
receive early should consist of: 
 

 information regarding their type of dementia and how it would affect them;  

Page 11



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

 any further tests, treatment, activities or therapies that might be available and 
of help; 

 who would provide care and how to contact them including the professionals 
that would co-ordinate an individual’s care; 

 support groups and charities that could help; 

 how dementia could affect driving and what to do about that; 

 how an employer should provide support if the individual was at work; and 

 any research studies that were available for participation. 
 
Carers’ experiences relayed showed that most felt anxious, overwhelmed, unable to 
get any respite and that they hardly slept.  They were anxious about not knowing what 
they were dealing with and it was love of their partner that kept them going.   
Early information and advice given in the initial stages of dementia was also 
highlighted as essential, such as a list of entitlements and guidebooks as it was a 
strain and a worry not knowing what help was available.  Many Carers were resorting 
to Google to find out more about their partner’s condition and that was how 
information was discovered about possibly not being legal to drive and that the DVLA 
needed to be informed.  Carers were often left feeling confused by the process.  All of 
these factors led to a conclusion that there was the need for timely access to support 
as when it was in place people felt much more able to cope.  The benefits of peer 
support to help Carers and people with dementia in feeling less isolated was also 
highlighted as well as everybody’s experiences of dementia being different.  A person 
centred approach was key to supporting people in managing their situations. 
 
There was concern that based on people’s first hand experiences, dementia support 
was becoming more and more difficult to access as services appeared to be reducing 
and no information was available as to what would happen in relation to future support 
if and when existing services decline further.   
 
The Board raised a number of questions and were informed that: 
 

 the funding for the Wellbeing Co-ordinator lasted for four years and was 
received from Public Health, but that funding had now come to an end; 

 the wellbeing service had not been promoted because there was only one 
Wellbeing Co-ordinator who had a case load of 150 and did not have the 
capacity to take on any more cases; and 

 apart from one memory café in Torbay, there was nothing else available from a 
voluntary sector perspective so this led to social isolation issues.  There was 
some national support in the form of telephone befrienders but the voluntary 
sector was struggling as to what to do with people that had come to them for 
help.  If people presented with a housing issue, the voluntary sector could deal 
with that and assist, but if people presented with dementia and needed support, 
there was nothing specific and little that the voluntary sector could do to assist. 

 
Rowcroft Dementia Unit 
 
The Chief Executive of Rowcroft Hospice provided Members with an overview of the 
proposed Rowcroft Dementia Unit in Torbay. 
 

Page 12



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

Members were informed that the plans encompassed 23 acres of ground and that 
planning approval had been granted with a two year consultation having taken place 
and the project was ready to be delivered.  The current hospice would be rebuilt 
moving from a ward based model to individual rooms with en-suite facilities and rooms 
for families to stay overnight.  Emphasis was put on linking in with nature and every 
bed had access to gardens and sky-garden.   
 
The Orchard would provide a 40 bed assisted living accommodation village for those 
65 plus, with domiciliary care and luxury apartments.  Generating income for the 
hospice long term also had to be a consideration, but overall it was a great facility for 
the community.   
 
Lavender Square would present a 60 bed world class specialist dementia and 
complex nursing home with six households of 10 residents. The plans were based on 
world best practice for dementia care and focussed around normalisation.  There were 
also plans for a nursery with 37 young people on site engaging with residents on a 
daily basis as the impact of intergenerational care with the elderly was crucial.  A 
quality of life approach was adopted which also embraced horticulture at its core.  The 
emphasis was around creating a vibrant, nurturing and caring community, embracing 
the latest Artificial Intelligence (AI) technology to enhance care.  The objective was to 
create freedom of choice and have a street along which every resident could walk 
safely with access to a shop, hairdresser, music room, art room, cinema, events 
office, gym, library, restaurant, bistro and café bar.  There would also be a village hall 
for residents and community use, together with allotments and a daily bus to local 
facilities. 
 
It was explained that the need for a dementia nursing home in Devon was evidenced 
through Torbay’s Market Position Statement (2021 – 2024) which illustrated the 
growth and demand with dementia care.  Part of the research carried out was around 
the need for specialist dementia beds.  The document “Identifying the Need for 
Specialist Housing in Torbay (September 2016)) estimated figures for nursing care 
and by 2035 indicated a need for an additional 1,224 nursing care beds which clearly 
showed that something had to be done.  Torbay Council’s Strategy for Housing in 
Later Life (2020 – 2025) was also considered along with the increase in ageing 
population.  Torbay’s summary estimate of need for older people’s housing and 
accommodation to 2035 indicated that a further 370 beds in nursing care would be 
required.   
 
Additional research was undertaken in the form of the Carterwood Report which 
provided a comprehensive market analysis for the care home for Rowcroft Hospice.  
Indicative balance of provision as at 2021 provided a snapshot that the estimated 
shortfall in beds would be 535.  Research was also undertaken to pinpoint what was 
missing in the community to support elderly care provision with the community and the 
response was that 85% of respondents felt that there was not enough care provision 
and options for the elderly within the local area.  62% felt that greater access to GP’s 
and specialist dementia care needed improving for the elderly within Torbay and 50% 
felt that more accessible local transport, improved end of life care, accessible 
recreational activity venues and options for multi-generational companionship also 
scored highly and were deemed missing. 
 

Page 13



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

In terms of progress, the process had to be managed so that the nursing home would 
be developed first followed by the hospice and then the assisted living 
accommodation.  A care model and workforce model had already been developed 
together a digital decision making model. The value engineering process had been 
completed to save construction costs and an Amazon Web Services Imagine grant 
had been secured for exploring the use of Artificial Intelligence (AI) in a nursing home 
(Rowcroft being only one of three organisations awarded this in the UK).  This meant 
that AI tools could be explored for development, for example, to measure hydration 
levels and relay that information to carers and to ensure that residents could wander 
around the grounds safely but if they were to go near a road, for example, AI would 
alert carers.  Rowcroft had also been working with the ICB and local councils for 12 
months to agree a commissioning agreement but this work was still ongoing.  
 
Overall there was a real need and strong desire in the community for the planned 
development. 
 
The Board raised a number of questions and were informed that: 
 

 residents within the development would be able to have pets; 

 the development would be operationally carbon neutral with universal access 
across the site; 

 there was a challenge around funding and commissioning and there were 
complexities around introducing something like this into the system.  It would 
force commissioners to change things and to do things differently; 

 the reality was that the development had to be built at a scale that was viable 
long term; 

 60 beds in a small system like Torbay was a challenge because in the market 
there was no private market at the level of need Torbay has.  It was either high 
end social care funding or NHS funding and because of that schemes can only 
be made to work if 100% of the beds were taken and that could be achieved by 
working with the ICS.  If commissioned by the ICS this would be a Torbay and 
South Devon resource, so the catchment would be wider and numbers would 
need to be managed by design, so for example, a local connection could be 
required; 

 the effect on primary healthcare, social care capability and community care 
capability must be considered, if people with complex needs were placed in 
Torbay as that cost potentially transfers to the Torbay system with no extra 
monies available.  That was a challenge to put back to the ICS and ICB; 

 Lavender Square was a separate development with assisted living but was 
within the overall grounds; 

 the nursing home would be built as a first priority; 

 the on site nursery would be open to both staff and community children.  There 
were three local nurseries keen to partner already and the children would be of 
pre-school age. 

 
Current challenges 
 
The Director of Adult and Community Services, Torbay Council explained that social 
care was facing fundamental structural challenges particularly in a post pandemic 
system.  Those people who were most vulnerable, with the most complex needs were 

Page 14



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

impacted the most and so that would include those living with dementia and their 
Carers. 
 
There was currently a workforce challenge nationally in social care and a need to put 
more money into training at a local level.  There needed to be consistent ways of 
employing and paying people in a way that meant they could have a good life 
themselves, for example, paying the living wage.  This was a real issue in social care. 
 
Going forward Torbay Council was committed to bringing partnerships together in 
Torbay, providing joined up services and a Torbay Dementia Strategy with aspirations 
for a systems strategy which would be required across the Devon system, particularly 
now the ICS and ICB were spending high levels of money on addressing complex 
issues. 
 
It was recognised that Carers find themselves in a lonely and challenging place 
looking after their loved one living with dementia.  It was important to work together to 
help the market and the community within the current funding available. 
 
The Board raised a number of questions following the conclusion of presentations 
from speakers and were informed that: 
 

 there were good examples of urban design in the context of looking at design 
and thinking about how to make developments/buildings integrated in respect 
of social health and care.  Torbay Council work with developers and 
organisations to ensure this.  For example, work had started around the 
Crossways development which would provide around 90 extra care and 
sheltered housing units.  It was also about ensuring that age, knowledge and 
experience remain within the community; 

 there were a significant number of care homes that have ongoing capital works 
or were doing some kind of refurbishment to improve the environment.  Torbay 
Council carry out pre-planning visits and the clinical quality team also attend to 
advise so support was given to providers to innovate but they were hindered by 
the environments they have to work with as most buildings were built in the 19th 
Century; 

 as part of the Torbay Dementia Strategy it would be necessary to look at 
accessibility and social isolation and how difficulties in relation to those aspects 
could be overcome; 

 cardiovascular disease was linked to areas of age and deprivation not 
necessarily coastal areas; 

 there were currently no care homes in Torbay that have dedicated dementia 
care; 

 the Living Well with Dementia in Devon booklet was not given out at the 
memory clinics but individuals were provided with some information and 
signposting; and 

 Carers were supported at the memory clinic at the four week stage. 
 
At this point the Chairman invited guest speakers to contribute in terms of what they 
would like to see and they responded as follows: 
 

Page 15



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

 from a strategic perspective it would be helpful to understand how to influence 
wider decisions to be made about next steps and for the Chair of the Integrated 
Care System for Devon to provide an update as to progress; 

 there were a lot of people who were living a reasonably good quality life with 
dementia in the community and it was about how they were supported to live 
longer and live better and ensuring that services, support and the environment 
were dementia friendly.  People living with dementia and their Carers wish for 
someone to be available to fix a problem or provide assistance rather than 
having a person who visits them, only to signpost them to someone else;  

 there needs to be a catalyst within the market to create and drive forward 
change; 

 current systems were too complex and therefore could create barriers.  
Systems need to be simplified; 

 a preventative approach was key and a new philosophy needs to be embedded 
for living well with long term conditions.  We could all optimise how well we live 
in many ways; and 

 further investment was required to deal with the projected rise in the need for 
dementia care going forward which would also help alleviate pressures on 
Accident and Emergency Departments and social care admissions. 

 
Resolved (unanimously): 
 
That the Cabinet be recommended: 
 
1. to support the co-production of the wider Dementia Strategy with specific 

interest in ensuring that Torbay residents can easily access information, advice 
and support through a joint organisational approach; 

 
2. to request the Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services, Public 

Health and Inequalities to write to the Secretary of State for Health and Social 
Care and the Chair of the Integrated Care System for Devon to highlight the 
need for advanced dementia care which is innovative and which can provide 
efficient services for Torbay, being a coastal resort with an ageing population 
facing an increase in significant bed shortages particularly for those living with 
dementia; 

 
3. to request that the Director of Adult and Community Services scope what 

access to training exists across the Voluntary Sector, Carers and domiciliary 
care agencies and explores with Torbay and South Devon NHS Trust provision 
of wider access to online portal training for dementia awareness and support; 
and 

 
4. to request that the Director of Adult and Community Services ensures there is a 

link to information from the Alzheimer’s Society regarding HIV associated 
neurocognitive disorder (HAND) on the Council’s webpage - HIV-associated 
neurocognitive disorder (HAND) | Alzheimer's Society (alzheimers.org.uk) 

 
 
 
 

Page 16

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alzheimers.org.uk%2Fabout-dementia%2Ftypes-dementia%2Fhiv-cognitive-impairment&data=05%7C02%7CAnne.Hawley%40torbay.gov.uk%7C9ac6c56f2baf4755b34908dc53dab2a8%7C13577bd8494345d98d3c304f184f6582%7C0%7C0%7C638477445959712020%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mSL%2FX9v%2BOBIaETcik7bm0HsD9%2FDgTaU%2FsYIjJaf7j1I%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alzheimers.org.uk%2Fabout-dementia%2Ftypes-dementia%2Fhiv-cognitive-impairment&data=05%7C02%7CAnne.Hawley%40torbay.gov.uk%7C9ac6c56f2baf4755b34908dc53dab2a8%7C13577bd8494345d98d3c304f184f6582%7C0%7C0%7C638477445959712020%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=mSL%2FX9v%2BOBIaETcik7bm0HsD9%2FDgTaU%2FsYIjJaf7j1I%3D&reserved=0


Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board   Thursday, 14 March 2024 
 

 

 
Chairman 

Page 17



Programme Update

11 April 2024

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 5



• We are part of the New Hospital Programme - this is a once in a 

lifetime opportunity to make a real difference in how we deliver 

services with, to and for our people

• This is not only about building a better hospital in Torquay, but 

exploring opportunities to deliver our services in ways that 

provide better outcomes for our population and better working 

environments for staff across all the communities that we serve

• We are further building on our integrated approach to service 

delivery and will be led and shaped by our health and care model

• We are building on great foundations - nine years of pioneering 

collaboration between our organisations, to ensure adult 

residents receive seamless social care, encompassing 

preventative care, reducing hospital admissions, managing acute 

care and facilitating independent living

Our opportunity

P
age 19



• Our purpose is to support the people of Torbay and South Devon  

to live well

• Our vision is better health and care for all

• Our building a brighter future programme focuses on our estate, 

our digital and technology opportunities, our people and our care -

these are the areas where we can have the most impact

• Clear synergies with your mission to support, enable and empower 

residents, communities and partnerships - for the people, for the 

place

– Thriving people – reducing inequalities, improving health and wellbeing

– Thriving economy – employment, community wealth building, digital technology

– Tackling climate change – net carbon zero

– Council fit for the future – culture of partnerships with our communities

Together for Torbay

P
age 20



New Hospital Programme

• £20 billion investment 

• 40 new hospitals by 2030, including Torbay Hospital

• Five reinforced autoclaved aerated concrete hospitals (RAAC) became part of 

scheme last year

• Standardised approach – Hospital 2.0

Ground-breaking standardised approach to building hospitals to make the process faster, more 

sustainable and more cost-effective. Reducing the time from planning and design through to 

completion, commissioning and opening new buildings to patients. The designs include digital 

solutions and optimised hospital layouts.

• All schemes in the New Hospital Programme will proceed through the 

development phases up to Full Business Case prior to 2030

P
age 21



Why we need a new hospital

• Third oldest hospital in the country 

• Over 80% of our core hospital estate is either in bad or poor condition (including 

our main inpatient wards, emergency department and outpatient department) 

and backlog maintenance is significant 

• Our sub-standard buildings are causing problems for patient care, with multiple 

incidents reported, including sewage and water leaks and ventilation issues

• Impact on patients - loss of confidence, delays, health and safety issues (e.g. 

hospital acquired infections) 

• Impact on staff – negative effect on morale, recruitment and retention

• Staff work hard to reduce the most immediate risks, but risk reduction measures 

are temporary, expensive and time limited

P
age 22



Site enabling works

Following feedback, we are making some changes to our site enabling business 

case to align us better with the new Hospital 2.0 approach

We hope to be ready to start site clearance later this year

Our site enabling works will cover three key areas:   

• Site clearance (in two phases)

• High voltage resilience and infrastructure

• Car parking

P
age 23



Preparing to succeed

• State of readiness assessment with NHP national team and Q5 consultancy

• Masterplan review to ensure our business case aligns with future plans and 

aspirations for our estate development

• Demand and capacity modelling to assess future need and assumptions

• Financial planning 

• Management of risks, issues and dependencies

• Further work on our evolving health and clinical care strategy with our staff and 

key stakeholders

P
age 24



Recent developments

New Endoscopy Unit £5m Opened November 2023

• Designed to treat more people who are awaiting diagnosis and treatment for cancer and bowel 

disease

• Since the opening, the waiting list has come down by 87% and is on track to be eliminated

• With the right facilities we can create a productive working environment for our staff and 

improve the experience and outcomes for our patients

P
age 25



Recent developments

New Theatres £15m Opened February 2024

• Reduce the time people are waiting for surgery and the time that people are in hospital 

following surgery

• Two operating theatres (one for breast and orthopaedic surgery and one for eye surgery) and 

additional pre-operative assessment and recovery spaces 

• Will allow us to care for and treat 4,500 more people each year

P
age 26



Thank you for listening

P
age 27



 

Public/Private – NHS Confidential 

Report to the Oversight & Scrutiny Sub-Committee 

Report title: Adult Social Care Contract Management Improvement & PARIS 
Replacement Report 

Meeting date: 
11/04/2024 

Report appendix: None 

Group Director Families and Communities Care Group Director, Shelly Machin 

Report author: Interim Associate Director of Operations, Adult Social Care  

Report provenance: N/A  

Description/Purpose of 
the report and key issues 
for 
consideration/decision: 

Updates on the following areas: 

- contract management improvements in ASC. 
- Paris (Case Management Recording IT system) Replacement Procurement 

 

Action required: For information  ☒ To receive and note  ☒ To approve  ☐ 

Recommendation: Further updates to OSC periodically at the request OSC 

Summary of key elements 

How does this report 
further our purpose to 
“support the people of 
Torbay to live well”? 

Good contract management in Adult Social Care is crucial for ensuring quality care 
provision while controlling costs and mitigating risks. It helps maintain compliance 
with regulations, optimises service delivery, satisfies stakeholders, allocates financial 
resources effectively, and promotes continuous improvement in social care 
provision. 

 

A new Case Management Recording IT system is needed to streamline processes, 
improve data accuracy, enhance efficiency, ensure compliance with regulations, and 
facilitate better coordination of care. It will support effective communication among 
stakeholders, support decision-making, provide comprehensive reporting 
capabilities, and enhance the quality-of-service delivery in Adult Social Care, all of 
which benefits the community.  

 

 

  

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



Adult Social Care Contract Management Improvement Report 

Date: March 24, 2024 

 

Substantial advancements have been achieved in establishing and implementing a contract 
management function within Adult Social Care, aiming to ensure effective oversight and 
management of contract service provision. This effort is led by the Delivery, Markets, Contracts 
& Quality (DMCQ) team, established in 2022/23 and overseen by the Associate Director of 
Operations – Torbay (Interim) & Head of Strategic Delivery – Adult Social Care. Market and 
Contract Management play a pivotal role in the 2023/24 Adult Social Care Transformation & 
Sustainability Plan, aligning with the recommendations of the LGA review. 

 

Initial LGA recommendations and action plans for the project are complete, with ongoing 
efforts to integrate revised processes into daily operations. Embedding market and contract 
management practices will take time due to the team's recent formation and limited prior 
contract management activities. While fundamental elements are in place, maturity of these 
elements including collaboration with procurement colleagues at both the Trust and the 
Council are ongoing. Within the Trust & Torbay Council clarification of roles and responsibilities 
in the commissioning process. The strategic (Torbay Council) and tactical (TSDFT) teams are 
working closely on the overall development and management of the social care market. 

 

Progress updates and efforts of the DMCQ team have been shared at internal Trust meetings 
and joint sessions with Torbay Council, providing insights into contract management 
establishment and Contract Register development. The focus has shifted from the completion 
of the contracts register and LGA review to the contractual information, however there is still 
refinement required.  

 

Next Steps: 

Moving forward, the team is committed to improving contract management practices to drive 
service delivery. Key focus areas for future developments include: 

 Operational contract management arrangements are still evolving. Whilst the LGA 
Review recommendations are complete and essential components for managing 
contracts have been established, further improvements in individual market segments 
needs to be addressed. These need to be clear deliverables moving forwards in 
2024/25. 

 Contract management meetings are scheduled in certain market sectors where Contract 
Managers are appointed. However, the formation of the team needs to further review 
to ensure it is operationally effective under current resourcing. 

 Utilisation of the new contract management toolkit documentation is evident, and the 
Provider Quality Support Policy has recently been approved through the Trust’s Clinical 
Effectiveness Committee, however both are in their first iteration and will review and 
improvement. 

 Well-established contract management in domiciliary care is good, however care homes 
is relatively new in still requires further work in terms of ensuring there is value-risk 
based cadence. 

Page 29



 Value and Risk Prioritisation is used to support the contract management resource 
required to undertake the implementation of a practice which has not previously been 
in place. Inconsistencies in records do hamper this process and must be addresses on a 
contract-by-contract basis. 

 Business case approval processes related to commissioning and contracting processes, 
particularly concerning integrated working with Torbay Council needs to be clearer. 
Updates to the Contract Management Procedure should follow once this is clarified. 

 ASC is dedicated to engagement and co-production with client groups, their families, 
and advocates. The Delivery, Markets, Contracts & Quality Team has initiated a Care 
Home Engagement Project, yielding valuable insights to commence co-production of the 
new Care Home Specification alongside participants from the engagement project.  

 

Adult Social Care Paris (Case Management Recording IT system) Replacement  

 

An external delivery partner, Channel 3 Ltd, was procured to support the options appraisal for 
an ASC IT System began 8th January 2024. 

 

PARIS currently serves various user groups within Torbay including Adult Social Care, Continuing 
Healthcare, and Occupational Therapy Services. However, identified inefficiencies and 
operational risks necessitate a change in the case management system.  

 

Key Drivers for Change 

Workflow Efficiencies: PARIS lacks a unified source of truth, leading to manual data entry and 
compromised document quality. Integration issues with other systems and absence of 
summary views contribute to widespread workflow inefficiencies. 

Operational Risks: Copy-paste and dual-entry errors, outdated data, and unclear customer 
information pose operational risks, compromising data integrity and security. 

Futureproofing: The selected system must adapt to statutory changes, emerging technologies, 
and regulatory reporting requirements, ensuring longevity and relevance in evolving social care 
landscapes. 

 

Requirements for the Future System 

 Support customer ownership over social care plans, 

 Enable mobile working,  

 Facilitate strengths-based conversations with clients, 

 Provide data and reporting for informed decision-making, 

 Flexibility to amend reports according to regulatory changes, 

 Ensure interoperability with wider systems, and 

 Align with digital strategy and cloud-first principles. 

Page 30



The case management system change is needed to address inefficiencies, mitigate operational 
risks, integrate with new EPR systems, and future-proof the organisation ensuring improved 
service delivery and responsiveness to evolving healthcare needs. 

Following a series of engagement workshops across January and February an Options Appraisal 
was drafted and scored with stakeholders in Torbay Council and TSDFT.  

The recommendations have been informed by requirements gathering workshops with over 
forty stakeholders, and demonstrations from three market-leading suppliers. Four options were 
shortlisted, and then evaluated by eight representatives: 

 Option 1 – Do Nothing. 

 Option 2 – Optimise Paris. 

 Option 3 – Commercial Off the Shelf CMS, retain TFM. 

 Option 4 – Commercial Off the Shelf CMS and Finance solution. 

This was presented to the Joint Steering Group where it was reviewed and the option to replace 
both the ASC Case Management System and the Finance Module was agreed. 

The next steps include: 

 Establish Cost of Implementation CoI), Commercial Off the Shelf CMS and Finance 
Solution (CoS) and Cost of Maintenance (CoM). 

 Establish a program to review systems, determine data migration approaches, and 
define Standard Operating Procedures. 

 Completion of Business Case and progress through Torbay Council Governance for 
decision-making and TSDFT for notification and information.  

Adult Social Care Paris (Case Management Recording IT system) Replacement aligns with, and is 
an enabler to, transformational activities in terms of efficient management of current and new 
cases, ensuring public value for money and a Care Act 2014 compliant, outcome-focused 
approach. 

 

 

Page 31



1 
 

 

Initial Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board Work Programme 2024/2025 –  

Approved: 

Updated: 

Pipeline 2024/2025:  

 

1. CQC update following inspection (yet to be notified of date)  

 

2. Adult Social Care Self-Assessment  

 

3. Wellbeing and Prevention Contract/Procurement  

 
4. Case management record replacement system (following recommendations below) 

- The Director of Adults and Community Services provides an update on the timeframe for the new data system at a future 
date to the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub Board.   

 
6. LGA Contracting Review – Update on implementation of new systems (PAMMS)  
 
7. Adult Social Care Renewal – delivery of MOU  
 
8. Infection prevention and control – incorporating vaccine preventable illnesses and antimicrobial resistance (AMR)  
 
9. Review of Suicide awareness/prevention – Lincoln Sargeant/Rachel Bell/Councillor Tranter (to be confirmed) 
 
10. Review of Domestic Abuse Services and support  
 

 

 

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 7



2 
 

11. Pharmacy First – update on the new scheme; how it is working and how it is helping the community, primary and secondary 
care, to include access to pharmacies, shortages of staff and medication and what is being done nationally to support our 
communities and address the issues 

 
12. To review new pathways for adults with learning difficulties  
 
13. Review of Adults safeguarding, and what support there is for people who live on their own with mental impairment  
 
14. Re-visit housing – the bigger picture/wider scope (Leonard Stocks and HMO’s) (Members of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Board to be invited to meetings on housing as it has been agreed that the Sub-Board would lead on this area)  
 
15. Thriving Communities – keeping people healthier at home to look at:  

 What’s being achieved; 

 Identify new ways of working; 

 Better care and innovative thinking; 

 Maybe reducing costs. 
 

 
  

P
age 33



3 
 

Timetable of Meetings 

 

Date Meeting Issue Outcomes and Objectives 

23 May 

2024 

Board Psychiatric Medication 

Supervision  

To receive an update on the North Devon rollout of the Psychiatric 

Medication Supervision Scheme  

23 May 

2024 

Board Adult Social Care 

Improvement Board – Co-

production update 

To receive an overview and update on the co-production work of 

Adult Social Care Improvement Board  

13 June 

2024 

Board Public Health – Building 

Heart Healthy 

Communities in Torbay 

To review the support around cardiovascular disease, identifying 

symptoms and preventative measures  

11 July 

2024 

Board Workforce plan for Adult 

Social Care 

To review the workforce plan for Adult Social Care  

11 July 

2024 

Board Draft Homelessness and 

Rough Sleeper Strategy 

 

Spotlight Review meeting  

Following recommendation at 12 October 2024 spotlight review 

meeting and to fit in with consultation time frame on the draft 

strategy.  Adults O&S to comment. 

 

Review of Homelessness – the rough sleeping initiative and how 

the Council interacts with voluntary organisations.  To include how 

we work with voluntary, community organisations and registered 

housing providers.  

 

(Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Board to be invited to 

meetings on housing as it has been agreed that the Sub-Board 

would lead on this area) 

5 

September 

2024 

Board Public Health Annual 

Report 

To review the Public Health Annual Report  

 

NB – cannot be moved as links in with timetable for internal 

process/Adults O&S/HWBB and Cabinet. 

 

P
age 34



4 
 

Date Meeting Issue Outcomes and Objectives 

10 October 

2024 

Board New diagnostic unit in 

Market Street - 2024 

Recommendations from 14/07/23 Sub Board meeting: 

 

To receive an update from the South Devon NHS Foundation 

Trust on the performance of the diagnostic unit together with the 

performance against diagnostic targets versus actual targets  
7 November 

2024 

Board Annual Review of Dentistry 

Provision in Torbay 

 

(to be sole item on the 

agenda) 

To receive an annual review on improvements in dental access 

and planned oral health improvement initiatives 

 

(Note:  Members of Children and Young People’s Overview and 

Scrutiny Sub-Board to be invited to this meeting.) 

 

19 

December 

2024 

Board Annual update on 

Domiciliary Care 

To receive an update on domiciliary care provision (Arising from 

recommendation – meeting 21/12/23: Quality of Care and 

Domiciliary Care)  

16 January 

2025 

Board   

19 February 

2025 

Board   

20 March 

2025 

Board   

17 April 

2025 

Board 

 

Annual Review of Building 

a Brighter Future 

Annual Review of Building a Brighter Future  

 

P
age 35



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board Action Tracker 

 

Date of 
meeting 

Minute 
No. 

Action Comments 

18/01/24 27 

That the Director of Adult and Community Services be 
requested to ensure that the ICO reviews the approach to 
Finance and Benefits assessments, ensuring that people and 
their relatives have access to information and support. 

Update awaited. 

18/01/24 27 

That the Director of Adult and Community Services be 
requested to review the joint approach with the Integrated 
Care Organisation (ICO) to provide care homes with 
information and advice. 

Update awaited. 

18/01/24 26 
That the Director of Adult and Community Services be 
requested to encourage the CQC inspector to engage with 
the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise Sector. 

Director of Adult and Community Services will 
action when inspection date is known. 

18/01/24 26 
That the Director of Adult and Community Services be 
requested to provide regular progress updates on self-
assessment to the Sub-Board 

Added to work programme. 
 
Complete. 
 

23/11/23 18 

That the ICB and Director of Public Health, and Director Adult 
and Community Services, Torbay Council explore and deliver 
joint communications to raise awareness of and promote 
access to dental provision, how to maintain good oral health 
and what to do if urgent dental care is required within Torbay. 

Director of Adult and Community Services and 
Director of Public Health actioning and update 
awaited. 

23/11/23 18 

That the ICB and Director of Public Health and Director Adult 
and Community Services develop communication resources 
for use by frontline services and supporting web content to 
raise awareness of how to maintain good oral health, how to 
access routine dentistry and what to do if urgent dental care 
is required within Torbay. 

Director of Adult and Community Services and 
Director of Public Health actioning and update 
awaited. 

23/11/23 18 
That the ICB and Director of Public Health and Director Adult 
and Community Services explore additional funding 
opportunities for mitigating oral health initiatives in Torbay. 

Director of Adult and Community Services and 
Director of Public Health actioning and update 
awaited. 
 

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 8



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board Action Tracker 

 

23/11/23 18 

That the ICB and Director of Public Health and Director Adult 
and Community Services explore how to improve and 
expand access to screening to address the escalating rate of 
mouth cancer registrations and mortality. 
 

Director of Adult and Community Services and 
Director of Public Health actioning and update 
awaited. 

14/09/23 9 

South Devon NHS Foundation Trust are requested to provide 
details of potential new opening dates for the diagnostic 
centre together with time frames for transfer from the 
temporary diagnostic centre at Newton Abbot Hospital over 
to the new premises at Market Street in Torquay. 
 

South Devon NHS Foundation Trust confirm 
that an update will be provided as soon as 
potential dates can be confirmed. 

14/09/23 9 

Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Board Chairman writes to the Health and Social Care 
Minister seeking reassurance that the NHS re-building 
budget for hospital funding will be protected and not diverted 
towards the Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete 
(RAAC) crisis affecting many schools across the United 
Kingdom 
 

Awaiting update. 

P
age 37



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board Action Tracker 

 

17/08/23 3 

Draft Strategy for Adult Social Care in Torbay 
 
Information concerning a website based approach for 
accessing care be provided to local MP’s officers and other 
information offices within Torbay. 
 
 

Director of Adults and Community Services 
and Head of Policy, Performance and 
Community Engagement to action. 
 
The timing of this needs to align with 
completion of the work on developing the 
Torbay Council website.  
 
Once the work has been completed on the 
webpages the Engagement and 
Communications team can share. 
 
Further update awaited. 
 

17/08/23 3 

Draft Strategy for Adult Social Care in Torbay 
 
A briefing note is circulated to all Councillors with information 
concerning the website based approach for accessing care. 

Director of Adults and Community Services to 
action. 
 
The timing of this needs to align with 
completion of the work on developing the 
Torbay Council website.  Expectation that the 
work will be completed by the end of March 
2024.  A lot of improvements have already 
been made including incorporating feedback 
from users and exploring ways to make the 
website more accessible to people. 
 
Further update awaited. 
 

P
age 38



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board Action Tracker 

 

17/08/23 3 

Draft Strategy for Adult Social Care in Torbay 
 
The Head of Policy, Performance and Community 
Engagement is instructed to publicise information about the 
approach to accessing care to inform wider communities. 

Director of Adults and Community Services 
and Head of Policy, Performance and 
Community Engagement to action. 
 
Once work is completed on the webpages the 
Engagement and Communications Team will 
publicise with residents and communities. 
 
Further update awaited. 
 

17/08/23 3 

Draft Strategy for Adult Social Care in Torbay 
 
The Head of Policy, Performance and Community 
Engagement is instructed to widen the inclusion of people 
with protected characteristics in future consultations and 
report back to the Adult Social Care and Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Sub Board at a later date. 

Director of Adults and Community Services 
and Head of Policy, Performance and 
Community Engagement to action. 
 
The Engagement and Communication 
Manager is working with the newly appointed 
Partnerships and Inclusion Manager on this.  A 
list of equality, diversity and inclusion contacts 
has been circulated to Engagement and 
Communications Officers to add any more 
contacts.  The team will then use this list to 
ensure that they are contacting 
groups/organisations that would benefit from 
knowing about any consultations or 
engagements that are taking place. 
 
Complete. 
 

P
age 39



Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board Action Tracker 

 

17/08/23 4 

Draft Learning Disability Plan 
 
The Director of Adults and Community Services provides an 
update on the timeframe for the new data system at a future 
date to the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Sub Board. 

Added to the work programme as a future item 
– “Case management record replacement 
system”.  
 
Director of Adults and Community Services to 
advise when update available. 

17/08/23 4 

Draft Learning Disability Plan 
 
The Director of Adults and Community Services provides an 
exempt report on the options appraisal and when it will be 
implemented to a future Adult Social Care and Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Sub Board. 

Added to the work programme as a future item 
- “Case management record replacement 
system”. 
 
Director of Adults and Community Services to 
advise when update available. 

17/08/23 5 

Adult Social Care Procurement and Contracting Review and 
Action Plan 
 
The Director of Adults and Community Services shares 
information with the Task and Finish Group Review on 
Procurement relating to work undertaken which allowed the 
revised work on Adult Social Care Procurement and 
Contracting to progress. 

Awaiting information from Torbay and South 
Devon NHS Foundation Trust. 

17/08/23 5 

Adult Social Care Procurement and Contracting Review and 
Action Plan 
 
The Director of Adults and Community Services is requested 
to encourage Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation 
Trust to work towards expanding the range of contractors 
who may tender for contracts to include smaller firms within 
Torbay. 

Director of Adults and Community Services 
has contacted Deputy Chief Executive / 
Director of Transformation and Partnerships, 
Torbay and South Devon NHS Trust to action.   

Operational team is considering how to 
implement this and what that means 
practically. 

Complete. 

 

 

P
age 40


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 NHS Delivery - Building a Brighter Future Programme Update
	Slide 1: Programme Update
	Slide 2: Our opportunity
	Slide 3: Together for Torbay
	Slide 4: New Hospital Programme
	Slide 5: Why we need a new hospital
	Slide 6: Site enabling works
	Slide 7: Preparing to succeed
	Slide 8: Recent developments
	Slide 9: Recent developments
	Slide 10

	6 Local Government Association Contract Management Review
	7 Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board Work Programme 2024 - 2025
	8 Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Board Action Tracker

